
 

ROCKFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
January 13, 2025 - 5:30 PM 

Agenda 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

OFFICER ELECTIONS/OATH OF OFFICE 
1. School Board Member Oath of Office 
2. School Board Member Officer Elections 

 
RECOGNITION 

1. School Board Member Recognition 
2. Middle School Student of the Month 
3. Hand 2 Hand Donation 

 
ACTION ITEMS – CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Minutes from the Closed session December 9, 2024 meeting 
2. Minutes from the December 9, 2024 meeting 
3. Presentation of bills in the amount of $12,206,938.56 
4. Wrestling Donations of $1,000 
5. 2023-2024 Salary Schedules 
6. 2024-2025 Salary Schedules 
7. Revised Winter Coaches 24-25 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Crestwood Furniture Purchase 
2. Audit FY2024 
3. Certified Staff New Hire 
4. Policy Update – First Reading 

 
REPORTS 

1. Student Representative Report 
2. Collaborative Reports 
3. Committee Reports 
4. Special Services Report 

 
RECOGNITION OF VISITORS AND HEARING OF PEOPLE PRESENT 

SUPERINTENDENT REMARKS 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Accommodations: 

Any person with a disability who needs accommodation for participation in these meetings 
should contact the Superintendent’s Office at 616.863.6557, at least five days in advance of the 
meeting. 



 

 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER 
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE AND OATH OF OFFICE 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE 

I do hereby accept the office of Member of the Board of Education of Rockford Public Schools, Kent County, Michigan.  

Dated _____________________, 20______.   
Signature 

CONSTITUTIONAL OATH OF OFFICE 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN  )  
 ) ss  
County of ________________________________________ ) 

I do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of this State, and that I 
will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of Member of the Board of Education of Rockford Public Schools, Kent County, 
Michigan according to the best of my ability. 

  
Signature 

  
Name Printed or Typed 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this ________ day of _____________________, 20____ 

 * 
Signature 

 * 
Title 

 * 
Name Printed or Typed 

Subscribed and sworn to by _____________________________ 

before me on the _______ day of _______________, 20______ 

 

___________________________________________________ 
Signature of notary public 

Name of Notary ______________________________________ 

Notary Public, State of Michigan, County of _______________ 

My commission expires ________________________________ 

Acting in the County of ________________________________ 

* This information is requested if Oath of Office is taken before someone other than a notary public. The oath of office should be 
administered only by a justice, judge, clerk of a court, or a notary public. A board member or the superintendent (unless they are 
also a justice, judge, clerk of a court, or a notary) may not administer the oath. 

(October 2009) 

Within 5 business days after the certification of a school board election, the school district’s “election coordinator” is required to issue 
a “Certificate of Election” to each elected candidate. Within 10 business days after the issuance of the certificate, the newly elected 
candidate is required to file an “Acceptance of Office” with the secretary of the school board. The secretary of the school board is 
required to forward a copy of the “Acceptance of Office” to the school district’s election coordinator. (MCL 168.308 and 309)  
Before entering upon the duties of his or her office, an elected school board member must take and file the oath provided in Article XI, 
Section 1, of the State Constitution. (MCL 168.310(1)) The oath is filed with the secretary of the school board. 

Jodi Nester
Highlight



 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
To: Rockford Public Schools Board of Education 

From: Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent 

Date: January 13, 2025 

Subject: January School Board Recognition Month 

 

Today, January 13th, is a big day. It is National Korean American Day, National Sticker Day, and National 
Clean off your desk day.  

But, recognizing important days/events/people is kind of a thing in January. There was Fruitcake Toss 
Day on January 3, National Spaghetti Day on January 4, and Peculiar People Day on January 10. There 
will be Appreciate a Dragon Day on January 16, National Popcorn Day on January 19, and Yodel for Your 
Neighbors Day on January 30th.  

But, seriously, we also celebrate some important things in January. We celebrate the start of a new 
calendar year. We celebrate and honor Martin Luther King Jr. on Monday, January 20, 2025.  

And tonight, we also take a moment to celebrate School Board Recognition Month. Each January, the 
over 600 school districts in Michigan take time to recognize and thank the people who serve our 
communities as Board of Education trustees. In the Rockford Public Schools, we have seven members 
duly elected by our community to serve our community and oversee the policy and governance of our 
school district.  

Our Board of Education has historically served without renumeration, ensuring that all community 
voices are represented and heard in our board meetings. The Board’s own guiding documents identify 
that the board’s focus is on policy, oversight an accountability, community representation, and 
establishing the district’s vision, mission, and strategic plan.  

Tonight, we would like to thank Jarrod Folsom, Kelley Freridge, Christie Ramsey, Jake Himmelspach, 
Tricia Anderson, Barbara Helms, and Andrea Jacobson for serving our community. Your sacrifice is 
appreciated by our students, families, and staff.   

Office of the Superintendent 
Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent 
350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341Phone: 
616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 
 



  
Meeting Minutes – Regular Meeting 

December 9, 2024 
Date I time Monday-December 9, 2024, 2024 I 5:30 p.m. 

Location Administration Boardroom 
Meeting called to order with a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance by President Folsom 

In Attendance 

Board of Education: Tricia Anderson, Jarrod Folsom, Kelley Freridge, Barbara Helms, Jake Himmelspach, 
Christy Ramsey, Nick Reichenbach 
Regrets: None 

Administration: Dr. Steve Matthews, Mike Ramm, Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Jodi Nester. 

Adoption of Agenda 

Motion to approve agenda by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey. Motion passed unanimously. 

Recognition 
1. President Folsom recognized Trustee Nick Reichenbach for his service to the Rockford 

Board of Education.  Trustee Reichenbach is an active member of the community and has 
been an asset to the Rockford Board of Education for 8 years. 

2. Middle School Student of the Month – A video was played honoring the Middle School 
Students of the month. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion to approve by Nick Reichenbach with support by Jake Himmelspach. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

1. Minutes from the November 11, 2024 meeting. 
2. Presentation of bills in the amount of $10,716,438.63. 
3. Athletics donations totaling $2,000 
4. Consumers Energy Easement & Resolution 
5. 2023-2024 Salary Schedules 
6. 2024-2025 Salary Schedules 
7. Winter Coaches 

  



New Business 

1. 2019 Bond 3rd Series Authorizing Resolution.
Dr. Matthews presented a resolution to the board regarding a bond sale.  Motion to 
approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Tricia Anderson.  Motion passed 
unanimously by roll call vote.

2. Certified Staff Recommendation - Dr. Wilson-Crawford presented new staff to the 
Board of Education.  Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie 
Ramsey.  Motion passed unanimously.

3. Superintendent Contract Appeal Language.
Dr. Wilson-Crawford presented new Superintendent Contract Appeal Language.  The 
HR committee worked with our attorney and proposed an option for Rockford Public 
Schools.  Motion to approve by Nick Reichenbach with support by Jake Himmelspach. 
Motion passed unanimously.

Old Business 

1. Policy Update – 2nd Reading

Dr. Wilson-Crawford presented a second reading policy update to the Board of Education for
approval.  Motion to approve by Jake Himmelspach with support by Tricia Anderson.  Motion
passed unanimously.

Reports 

1. Superintendent Evaluation

President Folsom thanked the Board for their work on the Superintendent Evaluation.  In his
report he touched on various categories that are a part of the Superintendent Evaluation.  Dr.
Matthews received the highest possible rating and the Board is happy with his work as the
Superintendent of Rockford Public Schools.

2. Student Representative Report
Student Representative to the Board, Brookyln Schmucher updated the board regarding recent, current
and upcoming events happening at the Secondary Level.

3. Collaborative Reports
Crestwood Elementary Principal Kyle Avink updated the board on events happening at the Elementary
level.

Rockford Freshman Center Principal, Dr. Kelly Amshey gave a presentation about things happening at
the Secondary Level.

4. Committee Reports

Trustee Reichenbach talked about the Building and Site committee meeting and highlighted
the topics discussed at the meeting.



5. RAMS XII Report 
Superintendent Matthews introduced Mike Ramm.  Mr. Ramm gave a report on tiered instruction.  He 
also discussed the RAMS  XII pillars and progress that is being made to meet the goals.  Mr. Ramm 
introduced Kyle Avink and Jesus Santillan who also gave a presentation on Tiered Instruction.   

 
Recognition of Visitors & Hearing of People Present – Public Comment 

 

Audience Participation.  No action taken.

 

 

 
 

 

Superintendent Remarks 
 
Dr. Matthews talked about River Valley Academy and thanked public speakers for their comments.  He 
discussed that Virtual and Alternative education have been combined.  We will continue to make sure that 
our students voices are heard.  He also talked about expansion of our immersion program.  Dr. Matthews 
thanked trustee Reichenbach for his service to the Board of Education.   
 

 

Adjournment 
 

President Folsom adjourned the meeting at 6:50 p.m. 
 

 

Recording Secretary Secretary, Board of Education 



BOARD REPORT ON DISBURSEMENTS
    

  DATE:  12/2/2024 1/6/2025

PAYROLL

GENERAL FUND NET PAYROLL 12, 13, & 14 4,693,172.43
FOOD SERVICE 12, 13, & 14 120,788.46
ATHLETIC FUND 12, 13, & 14 70,081.32

TOTAL  ALL FUNDS 12, 13, & 14 4,884,042.21

ALL FUNDS:
FEDERAL TAX          $ 473,204.28
SOCIAL SECURITY TAX-MEDICARE TAX $ 979,432.39
STATE TAX                $ 227,065.24
TOTAL $ 1,679,701.91

$ 6,563,744.12

BLUE CROSS INSURANCE $ 38,152.15
NVA/NATIONAL VISION   $
BLUE CROSS DENTAL $ 75,753.07
MESSA (VSP/MED/ LIFE) $ 863,653.25
NATIONAL INSURANCE SVCS(L TERM DISABILITY $
RETIREMENT PAYROLL  $ 2,469,296.13 $ 3,446,854.60
                

UTILITIES:
DTE ENERGY 23,946.14
CONSUMERS ENERGY $ 126,191.70
BP ENERGY (FORMERLY EDF ENERGY) BULK FUE$ 19,095.91 $ 169,233.75

BAL ON  GEN FUND CREDIT CARD # $ $ 0.00
                                                                                                                                                                                                         
CLASSIC PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 33,879.00
WEST MI RISK MANAGEMENT 38,613.50

$ 72,492.50
   

TOTAL OF ABOVE $ 10,252,324.97
BALANCE OF TOTAL GENERAL FUND 314,486.62
SINKING FUND REG CKS
SINKING FUND ACH CKS 0.00
SINKING FUND CREDIT CARD 0.00
2023 BOND REG CKS 19,904.50
2023 BOND ACH CKS 1,028,167.18
2023 BOND CREDIT CARD 39,889.56
GENERAL FUND ACH CKS
GENERAL FUND CREDIT CARD 552,165.73
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 12,206,938.56



Human Resources Department 
Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

www.rockfordschools.org 

Memorandum 

To:  Board of Education Trustees  
From: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
Date: January 9, 2025 
Subject: Cabinet Salary Schedules 

Attached to this memo you will find salary schedules for the positions of Technology Staff and Central 
Office Support Assistants (not covered by the RESPA agreement.) As discussed last our last meeting, the 
need to approve these salary schedules is precipitated by a Michigan Supreme Court opinion regarding 
calculations for salaries and coordination with the Office of Retirement Services (ORS) and the Michigan 
Public School Employee’s Retirement System (MPSERS).  

Again, the opinion holds the following:  

• NSI (normal salary index) calculations are unlawful because the ORS does not have the legal 
authority to create salary schedules for individuals. 

• A salary schedule could and should exist for employes whose roles are outside of collective 
bargaining unit agreements. 

• NSI is not defined in state law so the court provided a definition as follows: “ a written document 
established by statute or approved by a reporting unit’s governing body that indicates the time 
and sequence of compensation and conforms to a rule or principle.” 

Because of this, MASA and professional organizations that deal with school employment are 
recommending that the district’s Board of Education approve salary or wage grids for a variety of 
positions that could fall within the bullets above.  

If you have any questions, please let me know. I plan to bring additional wage scales for your 
consideration in February to ensure that all of our employees are covered.  

 







Human Resources Department 
Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

www.rockfordschools.org 

Memorandum 

To: Dr. Steven Matthews, Superintendent 

From: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 

Date: January 13, 2025 

Subject: REVISED 2024-2025 MIDDLE SCHOOL EXTRA-DUTY WINTER II COACHING RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

SPORT SCHOOL POSITION NAME 

SWIMMING (BOYS) ERMS/NRMS Diving Coach Ashley Garcia 

 



















































































































Finance Department 
Allison Clements, Executive Director 

 Of Business and Operations 
350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 

Phone: 616.863.6555  Fax: 616.866.1911 

www.rockfordschools.org 

Memorandum
To: Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent of Schools 
From: Allison Clements, Assistant Superintendent of Business and Operations 
Date:         January 13, 2025 
Subject: 2023-24 Year End Audit 

On an annual basis school districts are required to perform an independent financial audit.  This task was 
completed in the fall of 2024 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.  Marc Sawyers from Hungerford 
CPAs + Advisors will present the audited financial report for adoption at the Board of Education meeting 
on January 13, 2025. 

ATC:jg 



Human Resources Department 
Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

www.rockfordschools.org 

Memorandum 

To: Board of Education 

From: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 

Date:  January 13, 2025 

Subject: Certified Staff Recommendations  

Benjamin Kraker English Teacher   Freshman Center 

 



Human Resources Department
Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent 

350 N. Main Street Rockford, MI 49341
Phone: 616.863.6554 Fax: 616.863.6355

www.rockfordschools.orgrg

Memorandum
To: Dr. Steven Matthews, Superintendent
From: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources
Date: January 13, 2025
Subject:  Policy Update – First Reading

With the Policy Committee’s approval, the following NEOLA policy update will be brought to the Board for 
a first reading on January 13, 2025. 

Policy 
Number

Description Revised New Replacement

Po2410 Prohibition or Referral or Assistance X

Thank you for your continued support of the Policy Review Committee.



���� ������	
����

������� �����	�������������	��������

����� ����	��	���� � � �!	�"	�#"#��$%	��	$�� ��$!�#

���� ������

�����

$������ !�&�'(��	�)*	���)

%���	��&���� +���'(��	�,*	���,

����	�	-./012131/4	/5	.656..78	/.	79919374:6

	

;<	=>>?@A=<>B	CDEF	GD>FDH=<	IE=EJEBK	L=<M	I>F??N	?OOD>D=NK	PBPQB@	?O	EFB	R?=@A	?O	SAJ>=ED?<K	?@	BPTN?MBB	?O	EFB	R?=@A	CF?

DI	<?E	EFB	T=@B<E	?@	EFB	NBH=N	HJ=@AD=<	?O	EFB	IEJAB<E	D<U?NUBA	DI	T@?FDQDEBA	O@?P	@BOB@@D<H	=	IEJAB<E	O?@	=<	=Q?@ED?<	?@

=IIDIED<H	=	IEJAB<E	D<	?QE=D<D<H	=<	=Q?@ED?<V	L<M	I>F??N	?OOD>D=NK	PBPQB@	?O	EFB	R?=@AK	?@	BPTN?MBB	?O	EFB	R?=@A	CF?

UD?N=EBI	EFDI	T?ND>M	DI	IJQWB>E	E?	ADI>DTND<=@M	=>ED?<V

	

L<M	=NNBHBA	UD?N=ED?<	?O	EFDI	T?ND>M	IF=NN	QB	@BT?@EBA	E?	EFB	XJTB@D<EB<AB<EK	CF?	IF=NN	O?NN?C	EFB	T@?>BAJ@BI	IBE	?JE	D<	Y?ND>M

Z[\]K	Y?ND>M	\Z\]K	Y?ND>M	[Z\]K	?@	EFB	>J@@B<E	<BH?ED=EBA	Q=@H=D<D<H	=H@BBPB<EK	CFD>FBUB@	DI	=TTND>=QNBK	E?	D<UBIEDH=EB	EFB

=NNBH=ED?<V	;O	EFB	=NNBH=ED?<	@BN=EBI	E?	=	I>F??N	?OOD>D=NK	PBPQB@	?O	EFB	R?=@AK	?@	BPTN?MBB	?O	EFB	R?=@A	E?	CF?P	Y?ND>M

Z[\]K	Y?ND>M	\Z\]K	Y?ND>M	[Z\]	?@	=	>J@@B<E	<BH?ED=EBA	Q=@H=D<D<H	=H@BBPB<E	A?BI	<?E	=TTNMK	EFB	XJTB@D<EB<AB<E	IF=NN

>?<AJ>E	=<	D<UBIEDH=ED?<K	=I	=TT@?T@D=EB	E?	EFB	IDEJ=ED?<K	D<>NJAD<H	T@?UDAD<H	EFB	TB@I?<	CDEF	@B=I?<=QNB	<?ED>B	=<A	EFB

?TT?@EJ<DEM	E?	@BIT?<AV	LNN	ADI>DTND<=@M	PB=IJ@BI	=U=DN=QNB	J<AB@	R?=@A	Y?ND>M	Z[\]K	Y?ND>M	\Z\]K	?@	Y?ND>M	[Z\]	P=M	QB

JEDND̂BAK	=I	=TT@?T@D=EBK	DO	EFB	XJTB@D<EB<AB<E	ABEB@PD<BI	EF=E	=	UD?N=ED?<	?O	EFDI	T?ND>M	?>>J@@BAV

	

_	4̀ abc	defg

%�h�� 
i�i%i	jkki�)ll

mnopqonrs	tupm	vw xyz{|}y~��	��

�����uoo�y��yz{||y~��~y�o��o{y~�oxyz{|����o�{��z���y�����y���� mom



Human Resources Department 
    Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

www.rockfordschools.org 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
8:00 a.m., Administration Office 
December 10, 2024 
 

Present: Jake Himmelspach, Kelley Freridge, Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Jill Avink (recorder).        
Absent: Nick Reichenbach 

 
 
cc: Board members 
 Central office administrators 

SUMMARY AGENDA ITEMS 
Korie Wilson-Crawford welcomed everyone.  Kelley Freridge called the meeting to 
order at 7:58 am 

Welcome 

Jake moved the approval of the December 10, 2024, meeting agenda. Kelley 
Supported 

Approval of 
12/10/2024 agenda 

Jake moved the approval of the November 8, 2024 minutes. Kelley Supported Approval of 
11/08/2024 Minutes 

 
Korie reviewed the vacancies throughout the district for both permanent 
positions and long-term sub positions. There will be two retirements for 
certified staff on January 1st. After the holidays the district will look at the 
potential needs for the 2025-2026 school year.  The district is anticipating 
approximately 20-30 retirees at the end of the 2024-2025 school year. 
 
Korie discussed the changes in the benefits offered to employees and the 
transition with open enrollment and the new plans. 
 
 
Korie shared the fast goal communication and the changes from previous 
years and how the improvements will benefit the district. 
 
 
Korie asked if there was anything that was needed for the final draft.  A 
proofread was requested before release. 

 
Staffing 
 
 
 
 
 
RPS Healthcare 
Update 
 
 
RAMS XII HR 
Priorities 
 
 
Superintendent 
Evaluation Final 
Draft/Press Release 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Kelley Freridge adjourned the meeting at 8:45 am Adjournment 

  

  



RPS Board of Education Policy Committee Meeting
December 20, 2024

Meeting Location: Administration Building Meeting Time: 7:30 a.m.

Attendance: Dr. Steven Matthews, Dr. Korie Wilson Crawford, Christie Ramsey, Jarrod Folsom, Kelley
Freridge, Rachel Kreuze, and Jill Avink (recorder)

Christie called the meeting to order at 7:31 a.m.

Welcome
Dr. Matthews started the meeting with a discussion to review policies 2410, 2414, and 2418, and
welcomed Head Counselor, Rachel Kreuze to share her professional insights.

Policy Discussion
● The review of policy 2410 with the committee for a first reading at the January BOE meeting. It

was discussed that the policy should be kept except for edits to the first sentence. Counselor,

Rachel Kreuze shared insights as a counselor and the impacts of policy 2410.

● Korie reviewed the Neola recommendations for policies 2414 and 2418 with the committee, and

it was decided that no changes will be made to either of these policies

The meeting was adjourned at 8:55 a.m.


	Agenda Board of Education January 13, 2025
	Oath of Office
	Board recognition
	December 9 closed session
	December 9 minutes regular meeting
	In Attendance
	Adoption of Agenda
	Recognition
	Consent Agenda
	New Business
	1. 2019 Bond 3rd Series Authorizing Resolution.
	Dr. Matthews presented a resolution to the board regarding a bond sale.  Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with approval by Tricia Anderson.  Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.
	2. Certified Staff Recommendation - Dr. Wilson-Crawford presented new staff to the Board of Education.  Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey.  Motion passed unanimously.
	3. Superintendent Contract Appeal Language.
	Dr. Wilson-Crawford presented new Superintendent Contract Appeal Language.  The HR committee worked with our attorney and proposed an option for Rockford Public Schools.  Motion to approve by Nick Reichenbach with support by Jake Himmelspach.  Motion ...
	Recognition of Visitors & Hearing of People Present – Public Comment
	Superintendent Remarks
	Dr. Matthews talked about River Valley Academy and thanked public speakers for their comments.  He discussed that Virtual and Alternative education have been combined.  We will continue to make sure that our students voices are heard.  He also talked ...



	BOARD COVER SHEET
	BOARD

	Documentation
	RETIREMENT
	23 BOND REG CHECKS
	23 BOND MANUAL CHECKS
	23 BOND CREDIT CARD
	GENERAL FUND CREDIT CARD
	GENERAL FUND CHECKS

	salary memo to the BOE
	Memorandum

	Salary Schedules
	MS Revised Winter II Coaches 24-25
	CRW Furniture 010525
	BOE 2023.24 Audit results
	Memorandum

	Certified Staff Recommendations-
	BOE Policy 01-25
	December 10, 2024 HR Minutes
	Policy meeting minutes



